J— Community Development Fund Advisory Committee Meeting

. “:‘_ Minutes

L‘ Wedn.es.day, April 39, _2025 - 19:09 AM
Rt Administration Building - Auditorium
gﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁgmg 127 East Oak Street, Juneau, Wisconsin 53039

The Dodge County Community Development Fund Advisory Committee met on April 30, 2025 at 10:00
AM in the Auditorium on the 1% floor of the Administration Building, as well as virtually.

Call to Order:
The meeting was called to order at 10:04 AM by Committee Chair Guckenberger
Roll Call and Non-Committee Member County Board Supervisor Attendance

Members Present: Supervisor Guckenberger (in-person), Christian Tscheschlok (virtually), Jason
Valerius (virtually), Brian Doudna (virtually), Sadie Howell (virtually)

Members Absent: None

Staff Present: County Administrator Cameron Clapper, Community Development Administrator
Nathan Olson, Land Resources and Parks Director Bill Ehlenbeck, Executive Assistant Dawn
Gault

Others Present: City of Waupun Administrator Kathy Schlieve, City of Fox Lake Administrator Kelly
Crombie, City of Watertown Manager of Economic Development and Strategic Initiatives
Mason Becker, City of Beaver Dam Administrator Nathan Thiel, County Board Supervisor
Randy VandeZande, Next Generation Construction Zach Knutson.

Approval of the Minutes of the January 9, 2025 meeting

It was moved by Brian Doudna and seconded by Sadie Howell to approve the minutes of the meeting
from January 9%, 2025.

Overview of Community Development Fund Grant Program Activities
Community Development Administrator Nate Olson gave an update on activities since January.

e January 29, 2025 - Staff hosted a Community Informational Meeting to review program
parameters and application requirements.
0 11 Communities attended
e April 11, 2025 — First round of Community Development Fund grant applications were
due.
e April 15,2025 —Jason Valerius was appointed to the Advisory Committee. Mr. Olson
welcomed and introduced Jason.



Review of Community Development Fund Grant applications submitted

There were four (4) applications submitted in the first round, totaling $1,444,545.00 in requested funds.

The applicants were as follows:

e The City of Beaver Dam - $350,000 (16 lot single family residential development)

e The City of Fox Lake - $100,000 (8 lot single family residential development)

e The City of Watertown - $100,000 (18 duplex units, residential development)

e The City of Waupun - $894,545 (39 single family / duplex units; 72 multi-family units;
commercial; childcare facility developments.

Discuss, Review and Make Recommendations on Community Development Fund Grant Applications
Submitted

Discussion was opened on the City of Beaver Dam application. Discussion points included:

Not in a TID, therefore the return on investment to the County would be faster

Application did an excellent job quantifying housing need

Housing prices are somewhat high, may not address the missing middle.

The timeline is somewhat vague. The committee would like more information on a timeline.

0 The developer, Mr. Zach Knutson, reported that the project would get under construction
as quickly as possible after contracts are approved to beat inflation factors. He expected
2-3 spec homes to be completed immediately with the entire project being completed
within 2-3 years. He further reported that about half of the houses would be an 1800 sq
ft ranch style at about the $380,000 mark, while the other half would be higher.

Questions were posed about the Beaver Dam Housing Fund and whether the project would
continue if the grant were not approved.

0 City of Beaver Dam Administrator, Mr. Nathan Thiel spoke to these concerns. Mr. Thiel
reported that the project would not continue without the grant and the Beaver Dam
housing fund has limitations and would not cover the project cost.

O Mr. Knutson added that without the County grant, the price points would be too high for
the target market.

It was decided to leave all recommendations for the end of the application presentations.

County Administrator Cameron Clapper commented that the fund was created using sales tax
dollars with the goal of improving the value of resources and increasing potential for sales tax
value in the future, however quality of life factors can be taken into account when evaluating
applications.

Mr. Olson concurred that non-financial returns on investment should be taken into consideration.

Discussion moved to the City of Fox Lake application. Discussion included:

Fox Lake is in the unique position of performing as the developer
Concern that there are no clear measurable outcomes for this project.



0 City of Fox Lake Administrator Kelly Crombie reported that there would be 8 new units
within two (2) years. He spoke to the property tax and sales tax impact of this project. He
also commented that this project fills the missing single family home piece for the city.

e (larification was requested on the two (2) year timeline. It was reported that three on the north
side would start as soon as infrastructure was in place and development of the next lot must start
within 45 days of closing on the previous lot.

e This property is located within a TID, so there would be a longer wait for a property tax return. It
was commented that investments on property within a TID could accelerate closure of that TID.

e |nvestments in a small community can have an outsized impact.

e Review of the phasing of this project was requested.

0 Mr. Crombie reported that there is nothing locked in on phasing. The City of Fox Lake
owns 62 acres in this development. These single family homes are first, possibly multi-
family next and some light commercial. There are 16 lots platted, but not improved.

Discussion then moved to the City of Watertown application. Discussion included:

e Funding would be used to develop a road extension to unlock parcels for development.

e A question was posed about the Habitat for Humanity project and the relation to this project. It
was reported that Habitat for Humanity did not require the infrastructure, but would like to see
it completed.

e Discussion about side lots being responsible for infrastructure, but not wanting to pass on these
costs to Habitat for Humanity.

e Question posed about how many of these units are leveraged by developing this infrastructure.

0 City of Watertown Manager of Economic Development Mason Becker responded that this
project unlocks the private multifamily units in the middle of the block.

e Question posed about the presence of sidewalks.

O Mr. Becker responded that there would be sidewalks on one side to accommodate
ordinance and manage stormwater. City of Watertown Stormwater Project Manager
Maureen McBroom further reported that there are discussions in progress about
sidewalks and stormwater management.

e Comment was made that committee members were impressed with the collaborations involved
with this application.

e Mr. Becker reported that the developer will be creating market rate duplexes which will
contribute to the missing middle component in Watertown.

Discussion moved to the City of Waupun application. Discussion included:

e |t was requested that the City of Waupun Administrator give an overview of the project.
0 City of Waupun Administrator Kathy Schlieve reported that this project has two sections.
The northern section is 15 acres and is proposed to be 39 single/multi-family units. The
lower section is part of the Heritage Ridge Business Park. The missing portion of Shaler
Drive is prohibiting development along the Hwy 151 corridor. This project is within a TID.



The city will use this TID to support projects in this development. By completing the
Shaler Drive project, the City would look to accelerate the TID closing.
Infrastructure for residential projects reliant on public sector investment.

0 If infrastructure costs are passed on to developers, it puts homes out of the price range
for the general consumer of those homes.

Housing needs in Waupun are increasing due to expansion of commercial employers in the
Waupun area.

Debt capacity for the City of Waupun — City has about $30,000,000 worth of need and
$12,000,000 in capacity.

The timeline is less aggressive than other applications. Is the City of Waupun ready for the grant
funding? Administrator Schlieve reported that the engineering will be done by November 1,
2025 and can go to bid immediately if necessary. The developer is ready to move on the multi-
family development as soon as the road project is done. She also addressed pedestrian and
bicycle traffic.

Question was posed about the path forward if the committee only awarded partial funding.
Administrator Schlieve responded that the priority would be to develop the southern section to
open up the commercial lots and potential for a childcare facility.

Future investments in infrastructure required for residential portion of the southern section of
the project.

0 There is a developer’s agreement in place for the northern residential development. The
DOT is limiting access points on Hwy 26, so access for this residential area may have to
come from Shaler Drive.

Randy VandeZande spoke to the severe need for housing in Waupun. He also reported that this
area is owned by Waupun residents who would like to develop the area, but are being held up by
the lack of infrastructure. The project applied for ARPA funding, but did not receive funding. He
advocated for a need to address infrastructure concerns. The use of Community Development
Fund grant funds would advance this project.

Clarification was requested about the status of future applications, there are none known at this time.

The committee was directed to use this knowledge to guide there decisions and not to think about the

need to hold funds for the next round of applications.

Discussion followed on the County’s view on speculative projects and the definition of the project.

Further discussion included the inclusion of a developer’s agreement requirement and how the timing of

funding was going to be structured.

Scoring and recommendations from the committee are as follows:

City of Beaver Dam

Brian Doudna—7.1
Christian Tscheschlok — 7.7
Sadie Howell — 8.55

Jason Valerius — 8.15



e David Guckenberger —5.6
City of Fox Lake

e Brian Doudna—-7.7

e Christian Tscheschlok — 7.7
e Sadie Howell — 8.8

e Jason Valerius—7.7

e David Guckenberger — 4.6

City of Watertown

e Brian Doudna—7.8

e Christian Tscheschlok — 8.95
e Sadie Howell —7.85

e Jason Valerius—6

e David Guckenberger —6.7

City of Waupun

e Brian Doudna-—5.9

e Christian Tscheschlok — 6.05
e Sadie Howell - 8.05

e Jason Valerius - 8.1

e David Guckenberger—7.5

Brian Doudna moved to recommend all applications for approval by the Executive Committee with a
maximum of 50% of funds paid upfront. Seconded by Christian Tscheschlok. Discussion followed about
adding conditions for developer’s agreements. Brian amended his motion to include conditions to have
developer’s agreements in place before funding is released. The amendment was seconded. The motion

carried 5-0
Review of Next Steps, grant process feedback and future application due date

Applications will be presented to the Executive Committee at their next meeting on May 5, 2025. A
future meeting will be held to discuss feedback on the grant process. The next application date will be
July 11, 2025. An Advisory Committee meeting will be scheduled following that date to review

applications.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:21 pm.



Community Development Fund Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes
Wednesday, June 18, 2025 - 11:00 AM
Administration Building - Auditorium

DODGE COUNTY 127 East Oak Street, Juneau, Wisconsin 53039

WISCONSIN

The Dodge County Community Development Fund Advisory Committee met on June 18, 2025 at 11:00
AM in Room 302 on the 3™ floor of the Administration Building, as well as virtually.

Call to Order:
The meeting was called to order at 11:06 AM by Committee Chair Guckenberger
Roll Call and Non-Committee Member County Board Supervisor Attendance

Members Present: Supervisor Guckenberger (in-person), Christian Tscheschlok (virtually), Jason
Valerius (virtually)

Members Absent: Brian Doudna and Sadie Howell

Staff Present: Community Development Administrator Nathan Olson, Land Resources and Parks
Director Bill Enlenbeck, Community Development Marketing & Communications Manager
Morgan Muche, Corporation Counsel Kim Nass

Others Present: None

Review Community Development Fund Program Application Process

The committee discussed lessons learned from the first round of applications. Nate Olson noted that the
feedback and comments provided by the advisory group were extremely helpful, and small tweaks are
being considered for the next round.

Christian Tscheschlok commended the involvement of having external parties outside of Dodge County
to review applications and having a scoring sheet with clearly defined criteria. This structure added
consistency to evaluations. Suggested enhancing the spreadsheet scoring workbook with individual tabs
per applicant and comment sections. He and others noted that Criteria #5 — Timely Completion and
Project Readiness was a frequent weakness among applicants and often scored low due to vague
timelines or lack of readiness.

Jason Valerius suggested improving the scoring sheet to include space for reviewer questions. He noted
value in maintaining dialogue during the review process. He supported reviewing all applications as a
group in a subsequent session.



Supervisor Gukenberger asked whether applicants should be invited to provide a brief introduction, be
present at review meetings, or participate in a Q&A session. Jason supported holding a Q&A component,
followed by a review-only session to aggregate scores and guide allocation discussions, without
applicants present.

Kim Nass noted more has to be looked into if committee wants a closed session to be an option for
portions of the review and that the process should align with open records requirements. The
committee emphasized the importance of summarizing collective feedback for transparency.

Review Community Development Fund Program Application Materials

It was agreed that scores should be aggregated by each criteria line item, not as a total sum. The intent
is to use these scores to guide allocation decisions more fairly.

A 5-minute presentation format was proposed for applicants during the review meeting, with the goal of
delivering an executive summary or “sales pitch” followed by committee Q&A. No decisions would be
made during the presentation meeting; scoring and recommendation discussions would take place at a
follow-up session.

The group also agreed that a semi-annual application cycle would be more manageable than quarterly
rounds.

Review Next Application Due Date and Timeline

The committee confirmed keeping the application due date of Thursday, July 11, 2025, and scheduled
the next advisory committee meeting for Tuesday, July 29, 2025, from 12:00 PM to 3:00 PM. This
meeting will include application presentations and review. A separate follow-up meeting will be
scheduled to determine funding recommendations for the Executive Committee.

Next Advisory Committee Meeting: Tuesday, July 29, 2025 at 12pm.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:49 am.



